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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREREUARERE I mR D

On behalf of the board (the “Board”
(the”Directors”) of Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding

) of directors

Limited (the”Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2022, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,665,515,000
(2021: HK$1,416,409,000) and a gross profit of
HK$508,488,000 (2021: HK$322,651,000). The Group
recorded a profit for the year of HK$50,832,000 (2021: loss
of HK$55,972,000), which was mainly because of the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business recorded a profit for the
year of HK$60,874,000 (2021: loss of HK$48,108,000).

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK&0.55 (2021: loss
HKe 0.60). The return on equity, calculated on the basis of
profit attributable to owners of the Company as a percentage
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 1.8%
(2021: -2%).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group has only one reportable operating
segment, the general aviation aircraft piston engine business,
which engages in the design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well
as the provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.

In 2022, the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business recognised a revenue of HK$1,665,515,000 (2021:
HK$1,416,409,000) and a gross profit of HK$508,488,000
(2021: HK$322,651,000), and recorded a profit for the year
of HK$60,874,000 (2021: loss of HK$48,108,000). The profit
was mainly attributable to the increase in the sales orders and
the products deliveries resulted in a significant growth in the
revenue and the corresponding gross profit this year, offsetting
the impact of the impairment of HK$101,142,000 on other
intangible assets.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

It is impossible to review the 2022 global economic overview
without addressing the proverbial elephant in all industries:
inflation. For decades, significant price growth eluded most
major markets. Then, suddenly, a surge in demand coming
out of the COVID-19 recession,
coupled with the Russia and Ukraine conflict,

individual saving increasing,
created
operational pressure on the global economic environment.

In 2022, the global economy headed into low growth. The
International Monetary Fund projected global gross domestic
product (“GDP") growth would slow down from 6% in 2021 to
an estimated 3.4% in 2022. Meanwhile, global inflation rose
from 4.7% in 2021 to 8.8% in 2022.

Notwithstanding the United States Fed funds rate raised by 425
basis points in 2022, the United States economy finished 2022
in solid shape even as questions persist over whether growth
will turn negative in the year ahead. Real GDP grew at a strong
annualized pace of 3.2% in the third quarter and was on track
for another 2.9% in the fourth quarter GDP at an annualized
pace. The demand for general aviation aircraft remained high
as the industry continued to strategically navigate the supply
chain challenges, fuel cost increase and workforce shortage.
According to the General Aviation Management Association
Report, 1,524 piston aircraft were delivered in 2022, an 8.2%
raise from the previous year.

In spite of the impacts of COVID,
inflation,

supply chain bottleneck,
labor shortage, fuel cost increase and machine
downtime, the Group continued navigating the blustery
headwind and reported a strong 2022 performance: revenue
increased by 17.6% from last year; profit and cash from

operating activities were hence significantly improved.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREHREUREERE N RR I

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Goodwill

The Group's goodwill acquired through business combination
has been allocated to a cash-generating unit in USA (“USA
CGU") and a cash-generating unit in Germany (”“Germany
CGU"). As at 31 December 2022, the entire amount of the
goodwill related to the Germany CGU was HK$13,439,000
(2021: HK$14,163,000).
Germany CGU was performed with the support of Kroll, LLC,

The impairment assessment of

an independent professionally qualified valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
impairment loss was recognised.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of development programs

in progress, trademarks, product technology, licence and
completed programs, customer relationships and others. As at
31 December 2022, the Group's other intangible assets were

HK$1,387,327,000 (2021: HK$1,564,078,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the impairment loss
of HK$101,142,000 was recognised for development programs
in progress. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
impairments losses of HK$1,307,000 and HK$5,121,000
were recognised for trademarks and customer relationships
respectively.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A joint venture and an associate

During the year, the Group recorded a share of losses of
an associate in an aggregate of HK$8,390,000 (2021:
HK$4,130,000). The dilution of the Group's equity interest in an
associate constitutes a gain on deemed disposal of an associate
of HK$3,852,000 (2021: HK$11,700,000).

On 30 November 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a purchaser, an independent third-
party, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to acquire
the Group’s equity interest held in a joint venture with a
consideration of RMB11,500,000. The disposal was completed
on 28 April 2022. During the year, the Group recorded a
disposal gain of a joint venture of HK$6,515,000.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of salaries and wages, product
liability expenses, engineering expenses, legal and professional
expenses and other general expenses. During the year, the
Group recorded administrative expenses of HK$293,665,000

(2021: HK$298,862,000).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREHREUREERE N RR I

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,509,210,000 (2021: HK$1,290,759,000),
including cash and bank balances and bank deposits with
original maturity over three months in an aggregate of
HK$824,752,000 (2021: HK$623,119,000). The Group's current
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 were HK$422,783,000
(2021: HK$390,863,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total equity amounted
to HK$2,818,891,000 (2021: HK$2,784,461,000), comprising
issued capital of HK$930,337,000 (2021: HK$930,337,000)
and reserves of HK$1,888,554,000 (2021: HK$1,854,124,000).
The Group’s interest-bearing debts included lease liabilities
of HK$294,099,000 (2021: HK$311,018,000).
gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the interest-bearing
debts as a percentage of total equity plus the interest-bearing
debts, was 9.4% (2021: 10.0%).

The Group's

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
pledged to secure the Group's bank facilities.

there were no assets

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure to

foreign currency risk was minimal.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this report, the
Group had no material acquisitions or disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022,
significant contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

the Group did not have any

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Group has been keeping track
of the major trends in environmental protection around the
world and has been making an effort to integrate the concept
of environmental protection in its operations. Based on new
technology and management approach, the Group strictly
controls its environmental impact and resource usage such
that cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions thus sustainable development can be achieved.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws and
regulations released by the relevant authorities which are
material to us. Throughout the year 2022, there was no non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREHREUREERE N RR I

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, there were 534 (2021: 510)
employees in the Group. The employees’ wages and salaries
amounted to HK$209,678,000 (2021: HK$208,768,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group recognises
the importance of good relationship with employees. The
Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group's remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses and
share options to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.

OUTLOOK

The International Monetary Fund projected global GDP growth
will slow from 3.4% in 2022 to 2.9% in 2023. Meanwhile,
global inflation is forecasted to decrease from 8.8% in 2022
to 6.6% in 2023 and to 4.3% in 2024. However, economists
expect a full reopening of the Chinese economy would be “the
biggest positive” that markets could expect in 2023.

Global economic activity continues to decelerate sharply
because of synchronized monetary policy tightening to
contain high inflation, less favorable financial conditions, and
disruptions from the Russian and Ukraine conflict. According to
the latest Global Economic Prospects report, global growth will
slow down. The outlook has several downside risks, including
the possibility of higher inflation, even tighter monetary policy,
financial stress, and rising geopolitical tensions.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2022, the Group significantly improved engine delivery
lead time from 87 days to 35 days for major specs. The Group
still have a solid aftermarket spare parts backlog that will be
fulfilled till the fourth quarter of 2023. the Group’s strategy
across the market sectors continually focuses on providing
a reliable quality product while delivering an outstanding
“Continental Experience” via exceptional customer service
and great value to our customers. Hence, after 2022's “Zero
or Hero” theme, the Group started the strategy of “Think Big,
To Be Great”

four delivery results: orders,

in 2023. The Group will continuously focus on
revenue, profit and cash. These
key strategic priorities will vigorously create the Group's future
growth opportunities.

World Class Manufacturing Facility — Blue Marlin
Project

Through 2022,
installation of 90% of new equipment (28 of 31) and 61%

the Group successfully completed the

of new equipment (19 of 31) started producing. The Group
expects all of the new equipment projected to be installed by
the first quarter of 2023 and expects such equipment to be in
full production capacity by the end of the second quarter of
2023.

In January 2023, the Group launched World Class
Manufacturing (“WCM") campaign for growing faster and
stronger. The Group will use WCM to create an overriding
goal and an underlying mindset for achieving the best
manufacturing results via the 10 technical pillars: safety, cost
deployment, focused improvement, autonomous maintenance,
professional maintenance, quality control, logistics and supply
chain, early product and equipment management, people
development and environmental. In addition, the Group will use
the WCM system to eliminate manufacturing waste and reduce
its cost moving forward.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEREUREERB G R O

Research and Development

Regardless of challenges on constraints of research and
development resources (raw material supply and engineers
pool), the Group achieved the milestones of increasing CD300
time between replacement (“TBR”) to 2,000 hours and
increasing the CD170 TBR to 1,800 hours in 2022.

Additionally, the Group finalized the latest GTSIO520 engine’s
Federal Aviation Administration certification and the European
Aviation Safety Agency validation, and our airframe partners
and the market have enthusiastically accepted our product
development. Other spotlights include:

1. Diamond DA50RG with the CD300, including the TBR

increase. The DA50 is market ready for the next decade.

2. Tecnam P2012 with twin GTSIO520 engines, replaced
the competitor’'s FADEC-controlled engines.

3. Tecnam P2010TDI with the CD170 TBR increase. The
P2010 Jet-A variant will be a competitor for all small
aircraft (C172, DA4O0, etc.).

4. Related aftermarket sales.

e
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Enterprise Resource Planning

To facilitate business growth, the Group has been implementing
new Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) globally since the
first quarter of 2022. The new ERP systems will provide robust
platforms to better manage our manufacturing processes and
operational costs, and assist in business growth, supply chain
streamlining, inventory, and reporting processes. The Group

expect to complete the new ERP in 2023.

In a nutshell, the Group had a recorded-high operating profit
and cash flow in 2022. However, the surge in inflation, the
Russia and Ukraine conflict and the implication of interest rate
hikes, utility and other operating cost increases will bring a
considerable degree of uncertainty to the global economy and
the General Aviation industry. In 2023, the Group will pursue
World Class Professionalism and World Class Manufacturing to
navigate the challenges to enable the Group to grow faster and
stronger.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Huang Yongfeng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREREEREZEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Yongfeng, aged 48, has been an executive Director
and a member of nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) since January 2021 and the
chairman of the Company from 1 April 2022. He obtained
a Master degree in management engineering from Beihang
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Huang is currently the deputy general manager of AVIC
International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”)
and the director of AVIC International (H
("AVIC International (HK) Group”).
the chairman and general manager of AVIC International
Holding (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.,
AVIC International, the deputy general manager, the general

K) Group Limited
He previously served as

the general manager assistant of

manager assistant and the manager of corporate strategy
and management department of AVIC Shenzhen Company
Limited, the chairman of Castic-SMP Machinery Corp Ltd and
the board secretary of AVIC International Holdings Limited.
Further, he was also previously a chairman of FIYTA Precision
Technology Company Limited (“FIYTA Precision Technology”)
and a director of each of China Merchants Property Operation
& Service Company Limited (formerly known as AVIC Sunda
Holding Company Limited) (“China Merchants POS"),
Rainbow Department Store Company Limited and Tianma
Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianma”), the shares of
which are listed and traded on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Mr. Huang has extensive experience in financial management,
investment and financing management, mergers, and
acquisitions, as well as aviation manufacturing and aviation
operation areas. He is also a chairman of three subsidiaries of
the Group.

Ms. Jiao Yan, aged 56, has been an executive Director since
August 2021.
Peking University. She is currently the board secretary and

She obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from

the general counsel of AVIC International. Ms. Jiao previously
served as a director of regulations, the deputy general counsel
and the minister of audit and legal department of AVIC
International.
Group.

She is also a director of a subsidiary of the
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Mr. Yu Xiaodong, aged 50, has been an executive Director
since August 2018 and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Chief Executive Officer from 1 April 2022.
He obtained a Master's Degree in International Trade from
University of International Business and Economics in 1997. He
previously served as the project manager of AVIC International,
the assistant general manager of AVIC International
Harbin Company* (R EAT),
management vice director of the international cooperation

the operations
department of AVIC International, the organisational
performance director of the human resources department of
AVIC International,
resources department of AVIC International and the general

the vice general manager of the human

manager of the auditing department of AVIC International. He
is also the director of six subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 52, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August
2019. He has resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 1 April
2022 and an executive Director on 3 April 2023 respectively.
Mr. Zhao has served as the manager of the capital operation
department of AVIC International since April 2022. Mr. Zhao
previously served as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Nankai University
and EMBA degree from China Europe International Business
School. Mr. Zhao is a senior economist. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Zhao held senior management positions in different
companies, of which two are Shenzhen listed companies.
Mr. Zhao has over 25 years of experience in accounting and

finance.
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EENEEREZREE

Mr. Li Peiyin, aged 36, has been appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2022. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Accounting from Yantai University, China, in July 2007, a
Master’s Degree in Accounting from Xiamen University, China,
in June 2010 and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Missouri State University, the United States of America, in
July 2015. He has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since April 2014. Mr. Li has more
than 11 years of experience in corporate financial management.
Mr. Li has been working at the finance department of AVIC
International since August 2010 and he is currently the head
of the finance department there. Moreover, Mr. Li has been
acting as the director of Rainbow Digital Commercial Company
Limited (“Rainbow Digital”), the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002419.S2),
since February 2021, FIYTA Precision Technology, the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000026.5Z), since February 2021, Shennan Circuit Company
Limited (“Shennan Circuit”), the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002916.5Z), since
April 2021 and Tianma, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000050.S7), since July
2022. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, aged 49, has been appointed as an
executive Director on 3 April 2023. He obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Nankai University, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and a bachelor degree
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr.
Zhang is currently a director and chief executive officer of AVIC
International (HK) Group and a director of Tacko International
Limited. Mr. Zhang served as an executive Director from August
2018 to August 2021.
FIYTA Precision Technology from February 2021 to September
2021
2022, a director of Tianma from February 2021 to November
2021, a director and general manager of Rainbow Digital
from November 2021 to April 2022 and a director of China
Merchants POS from September 2017 to December 2019, the
shares of which are all listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang was previously a director of

, a director of Shennan Circuit from April 2021 to April

Mr. Zhang was also previously an executive director of AVIC
Joy Holdings (HK) Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 260) from
July 2017 to September 2020. Mr. Zhang also served as the
head of the operations management department, the head of
the planning and development department, the head of the
comprehensive management department, the deputy head of
the strategic development department, the office manager of
international aviation business office and the deputy office
manager of the capital operations office of AVIC International.
Prior to joining AVIC International, Mr. Zhang served as
the president assistant of AVIC Securities Company Limited
(formerly known as JIEM#ESFBEREELE (SouthChina
Securities Company Limited)) and the head of LRI ZE
FT (SouthChina Financial Research Institute). Mr. Zhang has
over 25 years of experience in areas of management, aviation
business, strategic development, industry research, securities,
investment and initial public offerings.
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EREREEREZEE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, Jp, aged 75, has been a non-executive
Director since June 2015. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970
and November 1972, respectively. He has been an Authorised
Person (List of Architects) and a Registered Architect since July
1976 and January 1991, respectively. He was also admitted as
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since August
2001. He is currently an executive director of CK Asset Holdings
Limited (“"CKAH"), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July
1995 and was the group managing director of the property
and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is
now the group managing director of Hutchison Property Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH. He has over 40
years of experience in project management and architectural
design for various developments, including hotel, residential,
commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /5, s85, aged 79, has been an
independent non-executive Director since May 1999. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee and the chairman
of each of the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chu
received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Management at Northeastern University and was awarded an
honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited, and was an independent non-executive
director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited until
June 2021, all being listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 68, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2007. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Chemistry
and Administration. He is the senior advisor of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited. Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Port Holdings
Company Limited, China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Goldlion
Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited, and Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited, and was an independent non-executive director of CR
Construction Group Holdings Limited until June 2021, all being
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 58, has been an independent non-
executive Director since May 2017. He is also a chairman and
member of the Nomination Committee and the member of
Audit Committee. He received a doctoral degree in Economics
from Chinese Academy of Social Science Graduate School (-
Bt g R EZRMIEER) . Mr. Zhang started working at the
Institute of Economics under Chinese Academy of Social Science
(Fh B & R 22 B &8 BT 25 FR) since July 1988. He once led
and organized key national research project on economics. He
published several essays based on theory research and surveys.
His major research fields are the growth of China economy and
macroeconomic policies. Mr. Zhang was an independent non-
executive director of AVIC IHL until December 2014 and an
independent director of Minsheng Tonghui Asset Management
Co., Ltd (REBEEEEIEABRAE) until December 2021,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Jining, aged 52, joined the Group in June 2018 as
deputy chief financial officer and is responsible for the Group's
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and economic from
University of Xiamen. Mr. Lin held senior management positions
in different companies. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance and international aviation business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

The Directors are required to notify the chief executive
officer (who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chief
executive officer himself, he must notify the chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.
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Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company's
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five executive Directors, and
one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. An independent non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 8 out of 9 Directors served the full year for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The composition of the Board and
the biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
12 to 17 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, there is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) between Board
members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Nomination Committee will carefully consider the
qualifications and experience of each candidate, before making
evaluation and submitting its recommendations to the Board
on the candidates for the appointment of new Directors, re-
election of Directors and filling any vacancy in the Board. After
the Board approves the proposal in relation to the nomination
of candidates for Directors, the proposal will be submitted
to the shareholders’ general meeting for consideration and
approval.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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4.

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect

of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2022:

performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;

reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the
Group;

reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated

with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and

administration of the Company and makes operational and

business decisions within the control and delegation framework

of the Company.
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The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances through the chairman at the expense
of the Company. The availability of professional advice extends
to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the company
secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year ended
31 December 2022, five Board meetings were held by the
Company.
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The attendance record of Directors at Board meetings and other
Committee meetings as well as general meetings during the ERNEFEFTITERHEMES
IREAGHE RN TR

year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the table below:

Number of meetings or meetings attended/held

EENBE_E__F+_B=+—HLHF

TEEUK

Number of general
meetings attended/held

HE/ BTERAGERY HE/ BIIREAERY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee Annual Special
Director BE EXg HMWEEE RLEZEY BHKEEE BE Al
Executive Directors HITEF
Lai Weixuan* BRE* 33 22 - - = 0/0
Huang Yongfeng BB (XF)

(Chairman) 5/5 - 1mh - 11 0/0
Jiao Yan =¥ 5/5 - - - 11 0/0
Yu Xiaodong FER 5/5 1/1 - - 11 0/0
Zhao Yang fizkz 5/5 - - - 1/1 0/0
Li Peiyin FIEE" 212 - - - 1/1 0/0
Non-executive Director ~ FEHTEE
Chow Wai Kam BEE 5/5 - - = 17 0/0
Independent BUFRTEE

Non-executive Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David Fal 5/5 33 11 4/4 17 0/0
Li Ka Fai, David ERE 5/5 3/3 - 4/4 11 0/0
Zhang Ping R 5/5 - 11 4/4 0/1 0/0
g Mr. Lai Weixuan has resigned on 1 April 2022. i BESAEN S _FMNA—H#E-

g Mr. Li Peiyin has been appointed as executive Director on 1 April  # EREEEGENR S _FENA—BESES
2022. HITESE-

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a meeting was held
by the Chairman with the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without presence of the
executive Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, no

special general meeting was held during the year 2022. BITRREHI ARG -

RE8EE_E__F+_-_HA=+—HLHEE
N TEEIERITEES (BIEBIUIERTES)
ARBEHRTEFHENBRTRTT—XE

FoRRREBEAGIN RS- _FRNRE
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL EEEINIREERR

DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director was given a comprehensive, S4HEZTINEZEZTEALATE2E EXERE2
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he/she EMs&RBIFEBL > LUEE Rttt 55 2 0
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and BARBEERERZEE EHREAEZERE
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory fMESEIRE FHIRES -

requirements.

All directors were encouraged to participate in continuous X®AGHEIEREFL2HFTEIERRE &
professional development to develop and refresh their BRI FHEHMM A - REESREMEND
knowledge and skills. According to the records provided by the ##>BER T - —_FREBZLUTEN
Directors, the Directors received the following training during

the year 2022:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

FEEXEREER

Reading materials Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars
Director £F REME RERER HESNE HIg
Executive Directors HITEE
Lai Weixuan* BRE* v v
Huang Yongfeng =EIE 4 4
Jiao Yan i v/ 4
Yu Xiaodong TR v v
Zhao Yang i v v
Li Peiyin* FEE v v/
Non-executive Director FFHITESE
Chow Wai Kam BE% v/ v
Independent Non-executive Directors 1 IF#HiTEFH
Chu Yu Lin, David KAk v/ v
Li Ka Fai, David FRE v v
Zhang Ping R v v
E Mr. Lai Weixuan has resigned on 1 April 2022. * BESEENR - _FNMB—H{fo
& Mr. Li Peiyin has been appointed as executive Director on 1 April  # EREEEGENR S _FENAE—BEEZES
2022. HiTES-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separated from that of the chief executive officer.
Currently, the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are Mr. Huang Yongfeng and Mr. Yu Xiaodong
respectively.

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chief executive officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function of
providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole. The
Company had received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his Independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered
that the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgment and fulfill the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, Mr. Yu Xiaodong, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company's policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

Three meetings were held during the year 2022 to review and
recommend the remuneration package of all Directors to Board.
The attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2022,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of

the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out below:

—E__HF+__A=+—HLEEE &
NEEESBZMEERIHIWT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration = AE
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 752 1,000,000 71 4

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
financial statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met four times during the year 2022 to
assess the ability of external auditor and review the interim
and final results, the interim and annual reports, the external
auditor's engagement letter and fee, the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, the effectiveness
of the Group’'s internal audit function and the continuing
connected transactions. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set
out in its terms of reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination Committee which was
established in compliance with rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules
and code provisions B.3.1 to B.3.4 of the CG Code for the
purposes of reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying candidates with suitable qualifications
as directors, selecting and making recommendations to the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. It currently
comprises one executive Director, Mr. Huang Yongfeng, and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang
Ping (as chairman) and Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David. The duties of
the Nomination Committee are clearly set out in its terms of

reference.

One meeting was held during the year 2022 to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board regarding appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The attendance of each member is set out
in the table above under the section headed “"BOARD OF

DIRECTORS".
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals
of high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in
their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights
and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as
it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated
future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

the highest professional and personal ethics;

o broad experience in business;

o ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on
their experience and expertise;

o commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

o sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
o ability to develop a good working relationship with other

Board members and contribute to the Board’s working
relationship with senior management of the Group.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are the auditors of the Group. The
services provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing and non-auditing (including interim review and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2022 amount to HK$4,364,000 and HK$1,319,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the members of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’'s risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
had also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, internal audit
section of the Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by adopting an integrated risk assessment approach, and the
review report was presented to the Audit Committee and
the Board for review in March 2023. No material deficiency
was identified. Improvements in internal control and risk
management measures to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and to mitigate risks of
the Group will be adopted by The Board. The Board considered
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were adequate and effective and the Company had complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal control of
the CG Code. The Board confirms that systems and procedures
are in place to identify, control and report on significant risks
involved in achieving the Company's strategic objectives.
Exposures to these risks are monitored by the Board with the
support of Audit Committee, internal audit section and senior
management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Chi Ho, the company secretary of the Company, is
an employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. He has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated memorandum of association and bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company's website at
www.cath.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2022, the amended
and restated memorandum of association and bye-laws of the
Company was adopted pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 27 May 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to require a special
general meeting of the Company to be called by the Board.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company's website at
www.cath.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company's priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty-one clear days before an annual
general meeting and at least fourteen clear days before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2022 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 27 May 2022. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results of
the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. All
Directors attended the 2022 annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") report, which describes our EGS
development and performance in 2022, to respond to
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns about the Group’s
sustainable development.

The Board of Directors assumes the responsibility for the
sustainable development of the Group, and leads the Group
to undertake social responsibility. The Board believes measures
such as emission reduction, prudent use of resources,
addressing climate change, improvement of occupational
safety and health, and focus on quality will help the Group
achieve its missions and goals. The Board is of the opinion
that laying emphasis on ESG management can reduce related
risks, enhance the Group’s capability to comply with relevant
laws and regulations, improve corporate brand image, promote
the sustainable development of enterprise business and
increase the revenue of the Company. The Board considers that
strengthened staff training, improved equipment and facilities
as well as enhanced environmental support at the operating
site will contribute to continuous progress.

The Board will actively participate in relevant training to
understand the latest developments in ESG issues, and consider
inviting relevant experts to participate in board meetings, if
applicable, to help the Board gain relevant experience. We
have established working groups within our primary operating
units to set ESG goals and regularly review the effectiveness of
the plans. The working groups report to the Board biannually
or annually. By formulating strategies, the Board gives clear
guidance to the operating units on plans and goals, and
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the plans. The Board
regularly examines strategies and plans, and reviews the ESG
report to ensure that the Group's development and disclosure
standards meet the expectations of stakeholders.
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RIF- G RERHRS

ESG-related risk management is critical to the Board. Through
communication with different stakeholders and comprehensive
understanding of our business, the Board has made a basic
assessment of all relevant risks and considered incorporating
relevant risks into its risk management and internal control
systems to promote comprehensive risk management within
the Group. In particular, the Group focuses on risks related
to the management of air pollutants and greenhouse gas
emissions, enhanced capacity to address climate change,
employment systems, occupational safety and health, products
that safeguard customers’ health and safety and quality
control of production materials. In terms of addressing climate
change, the Group believes that climate change may lead to
infrastructure damage caused by extreme weather events such
as super typhoons. At the policy and legal level, the Group
may need to allocate time and resources to deal with revised
laws and regulations on climate change. At the scientific
and technological level, the Group may face the challenge of
accelerating technological upgrading to cope with the trend of
climate change. At the market level, the Group may need to
step up efforts to meet customers’ growing concerns on climate
change by prioritizing the provision of more environment-
oriented products.

The Board believes that our focus on product quality, proper
management of relevant supply chain risks and assurance of
occupational health and safety are particularly beneficial for the
Group to achieve its goal of establishing an excellent corporate
image. Therefore, the Group regularly assesses our product
quality and occupational safety statistics against predetermined
goals, as these goals and assessments are effective indicators of
production capacity and operational control.
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As society is building a consensus on sustainable development,
the Group will respond more quickly to address market changes
and demands. Looking back over the past year, the Covid-19
has enabled the Group to strengthen the occupational,
health and safety measures for its staff. This has enabled
the Group to resume operations quickly and meet market
demand beforehand. Suppliers have also recognized our ESG
performance and are willing to offer more concessions. Looking
ahead, the global economic slowdown, high energy and
raw material prices, supply chain constraints, and continued
geopolitical conflicts will affect the Group’s ESG strategies
and objectives for the coming year. However, the Group firmly
believes that the execution of ESG management will help us
handle the challenges of high energy and raw material prices
and supply chain constraints and steadily move toward an
environmentally-friendly economy.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
"ESG Report”), which details the
Group’s policies, measures, and performance on environmental,

and governance report (the

social and governance issues. By reporting to stakeholders,
the Group has disclosed its measures and performance on
sustainable development issues in a transparent manner
and increased public confidence; helping stakeholders
better understand the Group’s sustainability progress and

development direction at the same time.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This ESG report specifies the Group’s environmental, social and
governance performance for the fiscal year 2022 (1 January
to 31 December 2022), which is consistent with that of the
annual report of the Group. The Group planned and prepared
this report based on the materiality principle. Unless otherwise
stated, this report covers the general aviation piston engine
business in the United States which represents the majority of
the Group’s environmental and social impact.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES AND REPORTING

The Group's environmental, social and governance guidelines
are designed to continually improve the transparency and
responsibility of information disclosure. Therefore, the ESG
Report is released annually by the Group for public review. In
addition, the Group is committed to creating long-term value
for stakeholders in line with the interest of the environment
in which it operates, while driving the business growth and
sustainable development of the Group. As such, the Group
has formulated its sustainable development policies which
cover the Group’s activities in the environmental, employment,
business integrity, and social aspects. The Group will strive to
incorporate such principles into its practice and governance,
and is committed to contributing to the sustainable
development of society and the environment.

The Board is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
Group's environmental, social and governance risks. The Board
strives to contribute to sustainability. By formulating well-
defined environmental, social and governance policies, the
Board can identify and mitigate relevant risks, and ensure the
solid implementation of relevant policies and guidelines.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is prepared and presented with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules:

1. Materiality: the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported. Accordingly, this report
covers the principal business of the Group.

2. Quantitative: KPIs need to be measurable. Targets can
be set to reduce a particular impact. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems
can be evaluated and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative, explaining its
purpose, impact, and giving comparative data where
appropriate. Accordingly, KPIs are presented in this
report pursuant to the reporting guide.

3. Balance: this report should provide an unbiased picture
of the issuer's performance. The report should avoid
selection, omission, or presentation format that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the
report reader.

4. Consistency: this report uses consistent methodologies
to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over
time. Any changes to the statistical methods used should
also be stated in the report.

RIF- G RERHRS
A MR £ R L TTARA M8 - (B i

TREABERIDHEREER 2TAWE
o

1. EEM: ERRE -HEREANERSE
HEHREERHAMHEBRASELEEE
TER ARSRFHER AHRER
MEEAEENETEZEXZHBIEAREER
B

2. Bt WA UMBEMIER ZER
AR TFUSBINRBEBR THEEAR
EEE > MPAE] LAV R IR R B
BRREE AREEMKER SIS
525 B RERENIER

3. T AREATRIEHEREASE
BARR HEREATENRE MU
REBRANGE MR B EE RRIHF &
EZE - ERI MBI -

4. —H I AREER -RHORERE
HAE EEREBEERAFEAREN
LB - EMst D AN BERBMEE TF
RERSPER

41



42

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HF4FELR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIF- G RERHRS

STAKEHOLDERS PARTICIPATION AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Feedback from stakeholders not only helps the Group
comprehensively and impartially evaluate its ESG performance,
but also enables the Group to continuously improve its
performance based on the feedback. As such, the Group
regularly communicates with stakeholders in an open, honest
and proactive manner through a variety of channels, including
interim reports, annual reports, announcements and circulars.
During the reporting period, the Group continued to maintain
an open dialogue with stakeholders to review and update
the areas identified as important to the Group’s business
operations. This can help the Group develop sustainability plans
in line with its business strategy.

Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment are
among the key reporting principles for preparing a quality ESG
report. Therefore, the Group determines the topics of business
importance through stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment, and accordingly gives them priority in the relevant
section of the report.

The Group conducted an online stakeholder survey from
October 2022 to November 2022 and invited external
stakeholders such as customers and suppliers as well as internal
stakeholders including the Group's directors and employees
spanning from senior management, management personnel
and general employees to participate in the survey to rate
the reporting issues set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide according to their perceived
materiality to the Group or the stakeholder groups they
represent.

The materiality of each reporting issue was then determined by
consolidating the materiality levels rated by all the participants.
The materiality rating for each stakeholder category is the
average of all respondents within that stakeholder category.
The overall materiality rating across multiple stakeholder
categories is the average of the materiality ratings for each
category.
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To clearly illustrate the results, a materiality matrix containing ZA/EFRMRALER TXEU—EEEME
the materiality ratings on each issue as rated by the Group's MREEBMEBSMEMZTMHE (BIEEITMIH
directors and other stakeholders, including employees and ZF#F4HE) HEEZEFAHETFTNEEEF RN
external stakeholders, is shown below. The materiality matrix HTHHR - EEMHEEEBAFSEZENEE
clearly illustrates the results by classifying the materiality ratings %4 (C12)5) HEBESHMAAE EMEH
(from 1 to 5) of the Group's directors and other stakeholders on  FZH#E1TEI > LUE B MMRBEE R N EE S
each issue. The issues at the top right of the materiality matrix %EfEA FANZERAEBMBSMNEMFTHD
are considered as important by the Group’s directors and other HfAEREo
stakeholders.

Materiality matrix
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Indicator 1&:
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We received feedback from all stakeholder categories FFIEAERFTPNFIAEFMNDEERNZBWE

participating in our survey. B7 anti-corruption was determined

TEEBIRABERNESRMEB T

as the most important issue in both stakeholder engagement (L HWHEEAREEMNZE  FIAESGHBEE
and materiality assessment. All ESG issues were rated as W EAEE > ERMALREECRTEA
important, while A4 climate change was rated as slightly EHMEZREo

important.

The table below outlines the most important ESG issues FXREETARFNHERMRENEZTENE

identified by different stakeholders.

Stakeholder group
F{n & 455

Employees
8T

Customers

=R

Suppliers
HERE

B EREREE

Most important issues
REEEE

B2 Health and safety
B2 %2

B3 Development and training

B32% = B BT

B5 Supply chain management

BSfHFE i & 12

B2 Health and safety
B2 %2

B4 Labour standards
B4%5 T %8|

B6 Product responsibility
B6EMmEE

To address the concerns of relevant stakeholders, the Group has AHOEARRFONENGRR RENBEEH

disclosed the policies and measures implemented for relevant B ESEERERITHE T BER G

stakeholders in the corresponding sections of the report. il
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to implementing a series of
environmental management methods to control waste
gas and greenhouse gas emissions, water and pollution,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
By implementing targeted management regulations
to reduce the impact of daily business activities on
the environment, the Group strives to achieve a green
production model with low emissions and low pollution,
and aligns its business model with the development
trend of low-carbon economy, thus paving the way for
the Group's transition to low-carbon economy in the
future.

1. GAS EMISSIONS AND WASTE

(a) GREENHOUSE GAS AND AIR
MANAGEMENT

Based on its established environmental
protection policies, the Group has
formulated internal environmental
guidelines to systematically
integrate emission management into
daily operations. To promote the
implementation of environmental
protection guidelines, the Group
has established the environmental
management committee, and the human
resources director, plant facility manager,
environment and occupational safety
and health manager, and environmental
engineer maintain close communication
with various stakeholders to balance
different opinions.
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The Group takes active and effective
measures to comply with government
laws and regulations and its business units
have obtained emission permits issued by
the relevant authorities. The Group sets
emission targets for its core production
processes in accordance with the terms
of emission permits issued by the relevant
authorities and strives to apply appropriate
reprocessing equipment to all machinery
and installations. The Group has installed
pollutant control devices in factory
painting rooms, sand spray mills, sand
blasting machines and treatment tanks to
effectively control and reduce the emission
of carbon monoxide, volatile organic
compounds, particulate matters and
other harmful air pollutants, and regularly
monitors air quality.

The Group’'s air emissions mainly come
from its general aviation piston engine
business, which involves air pollutants
from transportation and testing of engines.
The air emissions include nitrogen oxides

RIF- G RERHRS
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(NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and particulate SEYI(NOX) ~ | 1Y)
matters. (SOx) Bz FERMI#) ©
Emission Unit (kg)
BER B E (F=)

2022 2021

g —F

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) A 1EHI(NOX) 1,938.76 1,905.09
Sulphur oxides (SOx) i & 1E4(SOx) 48.25 45.36
Particulate matters BRI 1,830.56 1,632.98

Table 1 — Total Emissions during the Reporting
Period
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The Group also seeks to reduce
greenhouse gas and exhaust emissions by
incorporating greenhouse gas and exhaust
management as part of its operational
decision-making by setting carbon
emission targets for its core production
processes in accordance with the terms
of emission permits issued by the relevant
authorities. The Group’s environmental
management system guides the review of
any new equipment or equipment changes
that may be a source of carbon emissions
to ensure that potential carbon emissions
do not exceed the stated target. The
Group’s greenhouse gas emissions come
from aircraft plant operations, including
fuel consumption in the testing of aircraft
engines. The business units have taken
multiple measures to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions and air pollutants, one of
which is to cut greenhouse gas emissions
by reducing electricity consumption.
To reduce power consumption in the
office, the Group prioritize using low-
power electrical appliances or products,
and avoids using unnecessary high-
power equipment. For example, the
Group preferably chooses LED or low-
wattage, high-luminance lighting systems.
The Group also reviews its internal
policies and practices regularly, updates
them appropriately to keep pace with
international environmental protection
trends, and implements environmental
protection initiatives in a timely manner.
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Scope of Emissions
greenhouse (Tonnes of carbon Intensity
gas emission dioxide equivalent) (Emissions per employee)
HimE BE
RERBEHHREE UL E E51) e 8I)
2022 2021 2022 2021
-l £ ZEZZ BT —F
Scope 1 #E1
Direct emissions BEEIN 2,730.92  2,837.14 7.00 7.45
Scope 2 gE2
Energy indirect emissions AER B HER 5.77 5.59 0.01 0.01
Scope 3 #E3
Other indirect emissions HEBEER 94.27 102.07 0.24 0.27
Total 4t 2,830.96 2,944.80 7.25 7.73
Note: The calculations were based on the Mzt : SHETLERB A
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs EMHNIRRAEEN
issued by the Stock Exchange, 2006 IPCC ER|ERE-ZF
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas ZRFIPCCARBE
Inventories, IPCC Sixth Assessment Report, R FEEREm IPCC
and latest grid emission factors. Scope ERARAERE =
1 includes consumption of aviation fuel, MEREKRRA T -8
unleaded petrol, liquefied petroleum gas, ENSEMERE &
kerosene, diesel, natural gas, acetylene, #AH S RIEAHERN
and carbon dioxide extinguisher, and SR SR R AR
fugitive emission of refrigerants. Scope IR B Z /AL IR K
2 includes electricity power purchased EHHE URE R
from power companies. Scope 3 includes B B 2b 3% HE 7 o # [E
disposed paper and air mileage of 2EERENATE
employees. BEEN -HEICIEE
EFMRBIRTE
2o
Table 2 — Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions during ®2- WHREHAWB=EREE

the Reporting Period
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(b)

Waste Management

The Group conducts a waste assessment
process to assess the discharge status of
newly added machinery or processes by
assessing their exhaust gas, water, solid
waste, special waste, non-hazardous waste
and hazardous waste. The Group adheres
to the 4R waste management principle
and strives to properly treat and dispose of
waste generated from its business activities
through use reduction, waste reuse,
recycling and alternative use. The Group
aims to reduce waste by 1% on the basis
of the waste data of the past two years
and follows up the waste data quarterly.

The Group classifies hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for disposal in the factory,
and the hazardous waste is handed over
to qualified hazardous waste collectors for
disposal so as to meet the requirements of
local laws and regulations. The hazardous
waste collectors commissioned by the
Group have all obtained hazardous
waste transportation permit from the
U.S. Department of Transportation. The
Group increases its downstream recycling
potential by classifying waste where
feasible and disposes of non-recyclable
waste in accordance with laws and
regulations to reduce the impact on the
environment.

(k)
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Intensity
(Emissions per

employee)
Waste Volume (Tonnes) BE
EEEM HEEE () e 8I)

2022 2021 2022 2021
s g% ZE-C BT %
Total hazardous waste ~ BEEBEEYESE 18.50 21.20 0.05 0.06
Total non-hazardous REEEVEE
waste 148.74 135.61 0.38 0.36
Table 3 - Waste Generated during the Reporting R3I- BREPRNFELEE
Period )
During the reporting period, the Group RSN AEEERK
strictly complied with the relevant ETEBENRFREANN
environmental laws such as Resource BRREAMEE XB
Conservation and Recovery Act and there A7 EREIRRBREE
was no case of prosecution against the I T AE AR 2R U 28 o
Group for violation of environmental laws.
USE OF RESOURCES 2. ERER

The Group’s internal environmental guidelines
follow the principles of green production,
energy conservation and emission reduction,
and systematically incorporate resource
management into its daily operations. In order
to enhance energy efficiency and reduce
paper and water consumption for practicing
environmental philosophy, the Group actively
monitors and manages the efficiency of resource
use by implementing a number of measures
to conserve resources and achieve low carbon
processes, emission reduction and energy saving
in our operations. Details of energy and water
consumption are discussed in the sections below.
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(a)

Resources

The Group also attaches great importance
to energy management and focuses on
reducing total electricity consumption in
kWh by 1% per year to make effective
use of power resources. The Group
will reduce electricity consumption by
integrating old facilities buildings into new
buildings, and gives preference to the use
of energy-efficient equipment, including
energy-saving lighting fixtures, with a
view to reducing energy consumption
in the long run. The Group conducts
lean management and waste reduction
management to encourage employees
to redesign the use of resources from
many aspects, effectively reuse products
or materials, prolong the life cycle of
resources, reduce the use of resources and
generate less waste, thereby achieving
the long-term vision of zero emission.
Meanwhile, the Group manages the
workspace using the “5S” management
scheme, which focuses on five areas: sort,
set, shine, standardise, and sustain, as the
core model, in order to improve operation
efficiency.
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Water Consumption

Sustainable and responsible use of
water resources is a major global issue,
and excessive demand and overuse of
water can cause serious regional water
shortage. In view of this, the Group’s
operation units have in place wastewater
treatment equipment. Through wastewater
minimization plans and neutralization,
chromate reduction, and alkaline
chlorination of cyanide, the Group ensures
that the emissions meet relevant standards
and water is reused and aims to reduce
the amount of treatable wastewater by
1% per year. The Group has no problem in
obtaining water sources fit for use.

(b)
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During the reporting period, the resources RSN AEERAR
directly consumed by the Group for SENEZHEERY
operations are as follows: T
Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption BE
Resources Unit HEE (H#2/8I)
Bl Bl 2022 2021 2022 2021
—Z-Z g IZE”C T -F
Energy
AER
Electricity ‘000 kWh 14.41 13.97 0.04 0.04
BN FTETRE
Fuel oil ‘000 kWh 2,621.76 1,329.66 6.72 3.49
Jeagi FTETRE
Fuel gas ‘000 kWh 9,556.24 10,650.01 24.50 27.95
k=) FTETRE
Total energy ‘000 kWh 12,192.41 11,993.64 31.26 31.48
AERAE St TETRE
Other resources
Ht&ER
Water cubic metre 30,760.00 20,822.00 78.87 54.65
K I FHK
Note: The unit of energy figures is translated MisE : BEREBBE2ETRMEH
into kWh based on the lower heat value. BREATRE MR
Fuel oil includes aviation fuel, unleaded HEEMZEWME &
gasoline, kerosene, and diesel. Fuel gas SR N JE T B S0 o
includes liquefied petroleum gas and MEBERLERR
natural gas. RRIAR o
Table 4 — Total Consumption of Resources during ®A- REPANERHFE

the Reporting Period we
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Consumption

Packaging material FHE
used for finished products  Unit 2022 2021
S m B EME B i —E-= B
Packaging material tonne

used for finished products 178.01 170.11

HplmEEME L

Table 5 — Total Consumption of Packaging Material
Used for Finished Products during the
Reporting Period

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to implementing a series
of effective measures to avoid and mitigating
the impact on the environment and surrounding
areas, including reducing noise, emissions and
indoor air pollution. The Group has engaged
qualified environmental consultants to review its
environmental projects regularly. For example, the
Group ensures that the factory is in compliance
with the Resource Conservation and Recycling
Act (RCRA), the Air Emissions Permit, and the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
have any major environmental accidents.
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4.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group is mainly engaged in the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business, with
its main operations located in Alabama, USA.
The Group has identified and assessed the
physical risks of climate change, and has put
in place measures to ensure that the Group's
infrastructure can effectively cope with extreme
weather to mitigate the impact on the Group’s
operations. Meanwhile, the Group is in strict
compliance with the relevant extreme weather
guidelines issued by the government to protect
the safety of its staff. The Group will regularly
review its climate change policies to ensure that
they are timely and effective.

B. SOCIAL

1.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group deeply believes that employees have
an important impact on the quality of its products
and services. Employees are the driving force for
the sustainable development of a company and
the foundation of a successful enterprise. The
Group strives to maintain a diverse, inclusive,
just, fair, healthy and safe working environment,
actively builds a harmonious relationship with
employees to gather talents and jointly promotes
the long-term sustainable development of the
Group's business.
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Equal Opportunities Policy

The Group is convinced that providing
employees with equal opportunities
can improve employees’ satisfaction
and motivation, attract outstanding
talents, and promote the Group’s
business development. The Group
formulates relevant recruitment and
promotion procedures to ensure that no
discrimination whatsoever exists in the
hiring and promotion process. Therefore,
human resources decisions are made
based on the capabilities, knowledge
and experience of job applicants and
employees related to the open positions
irrespective of factors such as gender, age,
race, family status, religious belief and
disability.

Compensation System

The Group has a set of comprehensive
human resources management policies
to serve as the basis of human resources
management. The policies include
compensation and benefits, working hours
and holidays, recruitment and selection,
performance management, promotion,
employment termination, training and
development, and other related areas.
The Group regularly reviews remuneration
packages to attract and retain top talent
with a fair and competitive remuneration
package incorporating basic salary, social
security insurance and other fringe
benefits. The Group evaluates and sets
remuneration levels taking into account a
number of factors, including employees’
work ability, the Group’s performance,
and compensation levels in the market.
Furthermore, the Group fully considers
sharing with employees the value they
have created in tandem with the Group's
performance growth, maintaining its
attractiveness in the labour market.
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During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any cases of violation of
relevant employment laws and regulations,
including labour laws, nor did it receive

any complaints related to recruitment.

RSN AEETEERE
REFEIEANEBERREER
FOERBES TR BB E R
B EF(EZE -

Number of employees

BT A#

2022 2021
By gender 4 51
Male B4 299 299
Female 7% 91 82
Total Hat 390 381
By employee category EELEE
Full-time 28 380 367
Part-time E i 10 14
Total 4B 5t 390 381
By age group FHMER
18-30 18-307% 81 67
31-45 31-455% 109 113
46-60 46-6075% 133 139
Over 61 615t E 67 62
Total 4Bt 390 381
By region (&
United States E[= 390 381
Total “a st 390 381

Table 6 — Breakdown of Total Employees by
Gender, Employee Category, Age Group,

and Region
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Turnover rate

TKEEE
2022 2021
—E-= —E- &
By gender R
Male B 18% 18%
Female 7 25% 26%
By age group FHMER)
18-30 18-307% 33% 37%
31-45 31-455% 27% 20%
46-60 46-607% 11% 16%
over 61 61m L 9% 8%
By region h &
United States EE 20% 20%

Table 7 — Breakdown of Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender, Age Group, and Region

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The occupational health and safety of employees
is of paramount importance to the Group.
A Safety Committee, comprising personnel
manager, safety manager, fire-prevention
officer and workshop routine officers, has been
established by the Group and is responsible for
the occupational health and safety affairs of
the Group. The committee is responsible for
developing safety management measures in
compliance with laws, making recommendations
to internal departments in accordance with
government standards and regulations, and
holding regular meetings to review occupational
health and safety issues raised by members. The
Group requires all employees to attend monthly
safety meetings covering the latest information
on occupational health and safety, internal safety
policies and safety incident reviews.
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The Group has established a risk assessment
mechanism that consists of a series of measures
including risk identification, analysis, evaluation,
treatment, monitoring and reviewing to reduce
risks which are not deemed to be under
acceptable limits. The Group has identified high-
risk positions and implemented occupational
health and safety measures accordingly to
protect the safety of employees. The Group
requires employees to strictly comply with the
formulated safety policy and guidelines which
specify workflows, various safety measures and
guidance as well as employees’ responsibilities
for their health and safety in the workplace.
The Group also incorporates safety performance
into its annual performance evaluation, striving
to effectively promote occupational health and
safety. The Group has also developed measures
for drug abuse prevention. Through the Employee
Assistance Plan, professionals are engaged to
provide local employees with training, diagnosis,
and consultation on drug and alcohol abuse
problems, and to provide professional advice and
guidance for employees.

No work-related fatalities occurred in the past
three years including the reporting period, and
the total number of lost days due to work injury
during the reporting period is 117 days. During
the reporting period, the Group has no cases
of violation of laws and regulations related to
occupational safety and health, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Act.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The future success of the Group depends on
professional and efficient employees. The Group
leads its employees to develop their potential
through employee development and training,
while underpinning the growth of its business in
line with its objectives. The Group encourages
employees to participate in personal development
and job-related training courses through the
formulation of employee training policies. The
Group has also established the Educational
Assistance Plan which provides eligible employees
with subsidies for internal and external training
related to their work. The Group believes
such arrangement can effectively facilitate
communication and team spirit, improve technical
skills and managerial capability, as well as
encouraging employees for further development.

The Group also has a complete training system,
which sets out the management responsibilities
of the training directors of each department,
and provides corresponding learning and training
courses for staff to continuously enhance their
work-related knowledge and skills. The Group
provides induction training for new employees
in daily operations, and assigns experienced
employees as mentors to newcomers to provide
guidance on their work. The Group follows
up policy training progress of new employees
through the UltiPro human resources system to
ensure that they have a thorough understanding
of the Group's policies.
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Training rate and average training hours of MREERAN > ZERN B THER
employees during the reporting period by gender MBI HEIXRZINF
and employee category are as follows: HRFEWT

Training rate

EAlE
2022 2021
- T —F
Gender ratio among S2MBNNETEHF
employees trained BB E TR
Male B 77% 78%
Female geglid 23% 22%
Employee category ratio SN E TR g
among employees trained BT HRE 28 EF
Senior management EREERE 5% 6%
Middle management RAREIEREE 10% 12%
General employee —mRET 85% 82%
Percentage of employees SMmiENNE THEK
trained to all employees BALE 100% 100%
Note: The percentage of employees trained is calculated M5 ZNREEEBDLENAEMUS
by using the total number of employees trained as MBNNETREERDE
the denominator. =
Table 8 — Training Rate of Employees by Gender and R - HEMREZMEBRBTER

Employee Category during the Reporting Period BHH 8 TEI%R
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Average training hours
completed per employee
SHESSTHZIIN TR
2022 2021
—E-- B
Gender TR
Male S 4.5 4.6
Female Z 4.5 4.0
Employee category BTHER
Senior management EREERE 4.5 4.2
Middle management RIREEE 4.5 5.0
General employee —mRET 4.5 4.4
All employees FrEEE 4.5 4.5
Table 9 — Average Training Hours of Employees by Gender RI- HREHNEMERNKRETHER
and Employee Category during the Reporting BB T HIIEFHRE
Period
LABOUR STANDARDS 4. YT AR
(a)  Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced (@ BIUEFAETHN#ZEZFT

Labour

The Group is firmly against child labour
and forced labour, and prohibits the
employment of any child labour and forced
labour in any operations and services.
Before hiring any candidates, the Group
will check the age-related documents
to verify their age. All employees of the
Group must reach the statutory minimum
working age.
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The Group adheres to the principle of
fair and voluntary recruitment, strictly
forbids forced or fraudulent recruitment,
ensures that all employees work on a
voluntary basis, and prohibits coercive
means including withholding of documents
and other undesirable methods. Where
employees are required to work overtime
in the production process, the Group
will formulate overtime arrangements
with the employee representatives and
employees, and the working hours will
not exceed the maximum legal limits.
Moreover, management personnel will not
force employees to carry out work with
significant safety and health risks or illicit
work.

During the reporting period, the Group
found neither cases of incompliance
with relevant laws and regulations on
employment, including labour laws, nor
incidents in violation of the laws and
regulations on labour standards.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group maintains the quality and safety of
products and services through cooperation with
business partners, and places emphasis on the
promotion of communication and partnership
with business partners on a continuous basis.
During the reporting period, the Group had a
total of 211 active suppliers, all located in the
United States. The Group carries out supplier
selection and evaluation process based on quality
and price with reference to internal guidance
and comprehensive supplier management on all
the active suppliers to regulate the engagement
of suppliers. The Group also conducts regular
assessments on suppliers’ overall capabilities,
asset position, nature of business, industry
reputation, product quality, delivery of goods and
compliance with laws and regulations. The Group
only selects high-quality suppliers that meet
regulatory requirements, and will require suppliers
to obtain third-party certification to promote
the improvement and promotion of suppliers.
The Group further uses the Solumina Supplier
Rating System Software to manage and certify
suppliers to achieve the best product quality and
management.
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In order to review the environmental protection
and process certification of suppliers, the
Group will arrange inspectors to conduct on-
site visits to evaluate the production capacity
and quality of suppliers, evaluate the production
capacity, technical level, quality assurance ability
and supply capacity of suppliers according to
the actual needs, and review the safety and
environmental management qualifications, so
as to ensure that suppliers meet the relevant
requirements in terms of quality assurance, safety
and environmental responsibility. Furthermore, in
order to promote the procurement of more eco-
friendly products, the Group regularly reviews the
solid and hazardous waste performance indicators
of suppliers to understand the environmental
impact of their products, and develops more
environmental indicators to identify more eco-
friendly products in the procurement process.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
(a)  Quality Assurance, Advertising and Label

In order to ensure that the products meet
the quality and safety requirements,
the Group implements strict control
over quality management. The Group
develops different policies and guidelines
at the design, planning and production
stages, covering every step of the product
production and delivery process. Before
delivering products to customers, the
products must go through internal quality
procedures stipulated by the Group to
ensure that their quality standards not
only comply with laws and regulations of
the Federal Aviation Administration but
also meet the quality requirements of the
Group.
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The Group will continuously strive to
ensure that its products meet regulatory
requirements and customer expectations,
regularly assess its internal production
processes to ensure customer satisfaction
and compliance with the requirements
of the Federal Aviation Administration,
and ensure that its advertising and labels
are accurate. If a product is found to
have any quality problems or other safety
hazards, the Group will immediately stop
selling it, promptly announce product
recall in line with the relevant mechanism,
notify relevant companies and institutions
to stop selling and using it, recall sold
items, and if necessary, immediately stop
production, and report the product recall
and its management to the local regulatory
authority.

During the reporting period, the Group
had no products recalled for safety and
health concerns.

RIF- G RERHRS
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(b)  Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
and Customer Information

In terms of safeguarding and protecting
intellectual property rights, the Group will
only select products provided by legitimate
manufacturers or suppliers to prevent
pirated goods from using its sales channels
to enter the market. Furthermore, the
Information Management Department of
the Group monitors the use of software to
ensure all software used is licensed, and
conducts regular inspections to ensure that
no unlicensed software is being used in
the computers of the Group. In terms of
customer data protection, all orders and
data of the Group’s customers are handled
and saved by dedicated personnel, and
no other employees are allowed to access
them, thus ensuring the protection of
customer data.

The Group abided by relevant product
liability and privacy laws, such as the
Consumer Data Privacy and Security Act,
and there was no case of prosecution
against the Group for violation of laws
related to product responsibility and
privacy protection.

INTEGRITY

The Group is committed to promoting honest
business and fair competition, and has developed
comprehensive risk management code and
internal control code, including setting out
relevant policies in the employee handbook and
guiding employees to comply with the code of
conduct. The code of conduct clearly defines how
to deal with conflicts of interest and interests
such as gifts, so as to ensure that all staff uphold
the highest ethical, personal and professional
integrity.
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The Group has established and implemented
an internal integrity system to strengthen the
integrity of employees in management practices,
and engaged a third-party agency to audit its
financial statements each year. The Group has
clearly defined misconduct such as bribery,
corruption, embezzlement, insider trading
and theft of Group assets in the employee
handbook. The Group is entitled to terminate the
employment contract with any employee who
is bribed with money, gifts or commission, and
reserves the right to take further actions against
such person, in order to avoid bribery, fraud and
other criminal offences.

The Group has formulated an effective whistle-
blowing procedure for employees, management
personnel and directors to report any misconduct
and dishonest conduct, and ensured that
employees can report matters of concern through
various channels in an absolutely confidential
manner. Where a case is substantiated after
investigation, the Group will take appropriate
corrective measures and disciplinary actions
against any persons involved. If it involves any
criminal offence, the Group will hand over the
case to the competent authority.

All new employees are required to complete
ethics training, while directors have to regularly
attend corruption prevention training to refresh
their knowledge. Directors and employees
received nearly 400 hours of corruption
prevention training during the reporting period.
The training materials include the latest anti-
fraud information and summaries of major fraud
cases and responses in various industries, and are
compiled in view of the Group’s conditions.

RIF- G RERHRS
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During the reporting period, the Group found
neither corruption incidents nor violations of
relevant laws and regulations, including the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

8. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

An enterprise and the community are inseparable
as a whole and an enterprise’s development
is also inseparable from the support and
recognition of the community. The Group deeply
understands the importance of making positive
contributions to the community where it operates
and considers community benefits as one of its
social responsibilities. The Group encourages its
employees to participate in charity and social
services, aiming to become a good corporate
citizen, better undertake its social responsibilities
and contribute to the community.

The Group will continue to regularly review
its objectives and orientation for community
investment, and supervise community investment,
sponsorship and donation activities and the
relevant approval policies.

During the reporting period, the Group engaged
in 212 hours of volunteer work and over
US$160,000 in various community volunteer
activities, including donating blood, supporting
food banks to help the disadvantaged and
donating toys to inspire children in the district.

OUTLOOK

Going forward, the Group will, where appropriate, conduct
reviews on and make amendments to its disclosure aspects
in response to the needs of various laws, Listing Rules and
internal management. The Group will also continue to carry
out more measures beneficial to the environment, society
and governance in its business operations to live up to its
commitment to the environment and society.
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GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE 3]
STOCK EXCHANGE

A Environmental Chapter
4 L

ASPECT A.1 Emissions A1

FiE A1 e

KPI'A.1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data A1

FEIRAA PEm ) e 48 K 4B RA BE I BUR

KPI A.1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity A1

B A2 BERBRIENERTE

KPI A.1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity A1l

EE A3 FFEEEEREYRERTE

KPI A.1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity Al

BIR A4 FMELBRZEREVEERTE

KPI' A.1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve A1

them.
B ANS HAMPRET MBI E B R R A EDE L B RFT RIS B
KPI A.1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Al

handled, and a description of waste reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
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A Environmental Chapter
IR =1: 1]

ASPECT A.2 Use of Resources A2

FE A2 BRER

KPI A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and A2
intensity

B A2 REMESNEER NEEEREEEREE

KPI' A.2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity A2

ERA2.2 BFEKERTE

KPI' A.2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken A2
to achieve them.

EE A23 HAPRET I AEREA N m B R KB EDE LB RIS

KPI A.2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that A2
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
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KPI' A.2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, with A2
reference to per unit produced

EE A2.5 Ny mPTRAEEMENEEREFESMGLE

ASPECT A.3 Environment and Natural Resources A3

FEA3 RIERRXAER

KPI'A.3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the There was no accident

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

that had significant
impacts on the
environment and
natural resources during

manage them

the period
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T ENITH BERNEATENEHR
ASPECT A.4 Climate Change A4
FHE A4 RIZEZME
KPI A.4.1 Description of significant climate-related issues that have Ad
affected and may affect the issuer, and the corresponding
actions
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B Social Chapter
e =3:1]

ASPECT B.1 Employment B1

75 & B.1 & 1%

KPI'B.1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and B1
geographical region

#51% B.1.1 R BEEL FRAFNRMEE DHNEESAEH

KPI B.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical B1
region

512 B.1.2 R ER AR &R B DRV EE ML R

ASPECT B.2 Health and Safety B2

5 E B.2 fRREAZZ

KPI B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of B2
the past three years (including the reporting year).

1542 8.2.1 BEZE (QEEREE SERTTUHNARKLE

KPI B.2.2 Lost days due to work-related injury B2

151 B.2.2 HIERAIFERH

KPI B.2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, B2
how they are implemented and monitored

1512 B.2.3 HMPT RN E R EE T 2 U RERRAITRERFE

ASPECT B.3 Development and Training B3

FEB.3 BRREN

KPI' B.3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee B3
category

512 B.3.1 BRI REESEFEDNZINEEB DL

KPI B.3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender B3
and employee category
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B Social Chapter

g =1
ASPECT B.4 Labour Standards B4
7@ B.4 TR
KPI B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid B4

child and forced labour

1512 B.4.1 T B E A e LU B T R sl T
KPI B.4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate violation practices when There was no violation

1512 B.4.2

ASPECT B.5

J5HE B.5

KPI'B.5.1

518 B.5.1

KPI'B.5.2

$51Z B.5.2

KPI'B.5.3

$51Z B.5.3

KPI B.5.4

}EZ B.5.4

discovered

M B IRE R B REHIRA RIS T REX By S B

Supply Chain Management
HEEEIE
Number of suppliers by geographical region

@B o R HERHE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers on which the practices are being implemented,
how they are implemented and monitored

HAERMERHREENEN mERNTERAEANHERHE -
URBRIEFNRITRER G A

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

EARAARHIERSERINRERTERARIEG  UkHE
BBITRERFE

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
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WITRERRE

during the period
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B Social Chapter
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ASPECT B.6 Product Responsibility B6
& B.6 EmEE
KPI B.6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for  B6

}51Z B.6.1

KPI B.6.2

$51% B.6.2

KPI B.6.3

}51Z B.6.3

KPI B.6.4

}E1Z B.6.4

KPI B.6.5

1512 B.6.5

safety and health reasons

EENEEZERBHTAZEEEEERMARKMNE 2L

Number of products and service related complaints received and There were 1,320
how they are dealt with feedback items in total

and all of them were
followed up by special
personnel in accordance
with established
complaint procedures
during the period

BRERNERKRBNEFEE URBEHE G E HREE1,320BER R
ReEM EBMLHEA
RIERERFIEFIRE
BRI

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting B6

intellectual property rights
o B 4 5B R (R PR R o8 EE HE B A RV 1B A1

Description of quality assurance process and product recall B6
procedures
HhEESRTBREKRERBKRER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, B6
how they are implemented and monitored
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B Social Chapter
g =1
ASPECT B.7 Anti-corruption B7
FEB.7 R&5
KPI' B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices There was no legal

$51Z B.7.1

KPI B.7.2
fE1Z B.7.2
KPI B.7.3
}51Z B.7.3
ASPECT B.8
75 B.8

KPI B.8.1

$51% B.8.1

KPI B.8.2
1512 B.8.2

brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases

RERPAAHETANEEESRHIL EEEESHAEMF
=SSN

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

BB RBRED  URERRITRER A

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.
HARNEERETRENRESEI

Community Investment
HERSE
Focus areas of contribution

HEEREE

Resources contributed to the focus area

EEIRNEMBHBER

case regarding corrupt
practices during the
period
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 2 to 11 of this annual report which
forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 96 to 257 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to

allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:

(1) the Group's actual and expected financial results;
(2) the Group's working capital requirements,

capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) the Group's liquidity position; and
(4) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is subject to the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s bye-laws. The Board will continue to review
the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 258 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,857,729,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEMHBERER
The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to the HAEBTFEHERAGAIERZFEETD
Group's major suppliers are as follows: BT
2022 2021
- BT —fF
% %
Percentage of purchases: LRBREA DL
From the largest supplier RERAKEERS 5 8

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the Group’s
major customers are as follows:

AEBTERPAGAEEZHET DN
Lk

2022 2021
% %

Percentage of sales: HIHER DL -
To the largest customer RERAER 32 32
To the five largest customers KEREKRER 71 71
Except for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in  BR{E FTEIEZEA JEE R R FHEMEBEX 5118

the section entitled “NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS “ below, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers and customers.
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The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Huang Yongfeng

Yu Xiaodong

Jiao Yan

Zhang Zhibiao (appointed on 3 April 2023)
Zhao Yang (resigned on 3 April 2023)

Li Peiyin

Non-executive Director:

Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Yu Xiaodong,
Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping will retire by rotation.
Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, the executive Director who was appointed
by the Board on 3 April 2023, shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company. All of them,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the independent non-executive Directors as
independent.
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Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 17 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had

a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any

transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company's holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during or at the end of the year.

REEMZERRIER AR AR
Annual Report 2022 —% ~ 4 ER 81

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEEHRS
EEREEEREZRBE

BEERAEREESB2ERHNAERS
12BEFH178-

EFZRBEN

RPN EEREEFAEEEETI2EEME
BARNTHNETAHBATTILEEATR
—ERNEE CEERERIN KR IEZRBEGH

FrENE SR

BENHWN (BREEEhEEEEESE) S
BERSZEE RITEZFEXZNBRER
N RAEREZBE AERBZEERER
BAES AT HERNERTHIBRM
HE - BETEERUNAERREHES
HER KEZR (HheR) mEBZKEX
B mEREU R EEBARE MR EK
BB FELRBTEA UREIERERE-

EFENR G RHRaNZEDR

FREAFR EEHAES2HAEEBENRER
ANEAERAT - WEBATHBRITBA
B I ARNBEBAEREXEHR 2 EER
S ZHRENTHEEREAMEERBEEKX
feme



82

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2022 — &~ —HF4FELR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the section of “Share
option scheme” below, during the year no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company had been granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age;
no such rights had been exercised by them; and none of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of shareholders

R E

Tacko International Limited (“Tacko")

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)

RHERR (B8 £EBERAR
(TR (B8 £8))

AVIC International (HK) Group

REIRR (58 £ 8

AVIC International

o A BRI PR

Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd

("AVIC")

PEMETEERERAS (MMPMITE))

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
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wa

Capacity and
nature of
interest

B KkiEmtE

Beneficial owner

BE@mEAA

Beneficial owner

EmEBA

Through a controlled

corporation
Bl —EREE

Through a controlled

corporation
BB —EREE

Through a controlled

corporation
e —EREEE

A — s — —

)

Number of
ordinary

shares

held
FrfsEEiR & B

1,895,559,000

2,421,341,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390
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Percentage of
the Company'’s
issued share
capital as at
31 December
2022
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20.37

26.03

46.40

46.40

46.40
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According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with
the Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International (HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AVIC International. AVIC International is a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC (91.14% interest controlled
by AVIC as at 31 December 2022). Accordingly, each of AVIC
International (HK) Group, AVIC International and AVIC is

deemed to be interested in the shares held by Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following continuing
connected transaction, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Sale services of engines, engines parts and related
services

On 25 October 2021,
framework agreement with China Aviation Industry General
Aircraft Co., Ltd.
Group will sell engines, engine parts and related services to

the Company entered into a 2021 sale

("China Aviation”), pursuant to which the

China Aviation and/or its associates (excluding the Group)
for use in new aircraft manufacture and for the sale of parts
into the aftermarket for maintenance, repair and overhaul for
a term from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024. Further
details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 October 2021 and the circular of the Company dated
17 November 2021.

The continuing connected transaction of the Company is
included in the disclosure of related party transactions in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and had confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction had been entered into:

(M in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The total amounts of the sale income disclosed above during
the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap
amounts of US$38.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$301 million).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will issue their unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter will be provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction
or continuing related party transaction set out in note 43
to the financial statements that falls into the category of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that
needs to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

EEHS

Name of company

YNCIEZY EmtE

Nature of interest

bR LIRS BIEE MBI N RS M B R
7= MY 5243891 I B8 Bk 75 32 57 345 AR R gt 77 52
ZEBR EHRUBETARTFRENBERS N
FERERZ EFMIEARNBET LD
MRABIAAT ZFRE T LU EE -

/|

EENHREMER L2ED

FR TIEREBTHARRARFE TINES
MED MZFEFRBLHRAUTERKR
PHEAAEBENEBARFANEAERENMH

BH#E

Nature of competing business

MEEBMHE

Chow Wai Kam
BE%

CK Asset Holdings Limited

RIBXEEARLF RITES

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2022.

Executive director -

Property development and
investment (“Excluded
Businesses”)
MEZERREE
(TEABRZETS])

EXFERRTERAENBIUIMKEREH
MR ERRET T EEMEIRRE
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

On 9 April 2020, Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditors
of the Company. Following the resignation of Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company on 9 April 2020 to
fill the vacancy. Save as disclosed above, there were no other
changes in auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire and will not be re-appointed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Huang Yongfeng
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2023
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CONTINENTAL AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 257, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. This
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

R#EtEE (@

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEEHFEE

BANSEA N AHRAREAFTHETRE

BIRERHFRIE M EREERE

Impairment of other intangible assets with finite useful lives

We identified the impairment of other intangible
assets with finite useful lives as a key audit matter as
they are quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.
HRERERAFRNEMBETLEEHLGEMBRE
BREABTEERSR AMAREBERMMNRBERESE
Ig o

The other intangible assets with finite useful
lives amounting to HK$1,279,143,000 as at 31
December 2022 accounted for 34% of the total
assets of the Group as at that date. At the end of
each reporting period, the management reviews
the carrying amounts of its other intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). The management concluded there is
no impairment of other intangible assets with finite
useful lives during the year ended 31 December
2022. Details are set out in notes 3.2 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of other
intangible assets with finite useful lives included:
BB ERMERERERNEMBETLEERNENT
NESTEFEE !

o Understanding and evaluating the
management’s process for identifying the
existence of impairment indicators of the
other intangible assets with finite useful lives;
and

. THRETHEEEHNARERAFRNEM
BILEEFTRESTFRNER &

° Evaluating, with the involvement of our
internal specialists, management’s assessment
based on the relevant financial information
and market available information to determine
whether there is any indication that these
assets may be suffered an impairment loss.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

ESRAEEMGSMBRRAKIE
HEE

BERRAEFRAEREERGHMAERME
(BEVHREER) REE(ABFRG) BIRK
BEXREEEMTENGEMBRE I
HER A ABREVBRENBEESFER
RERFFHERMERNE KRB RERAPTF
WEERI B S -

EREBREVERRE EEa8 5004 &
EEFBEEENED TEBRBERTIRE
HFECEARNSEE UREAKELKE
~EER BRIFEFARR EEEFR
FILEE FHEEMBRNBER TR

REEREERE EXEENMBREARE-

BB FHR S M B R RAIENT
£

HPNER REHGEAUBRRERES T
FEARRGFHIERMERNERERBRIL
NREERE TREB(EREQRE)HF0
HHNREERNEERIRHEGERMERD
ZEEMIR S o BRILZ 5h » ARSI BIE
HMABR T EARETREZATHE
MEMALTRETOESERERERTEE
GEREBESKTHRE EFERZRR
(BAREFER)ETHES AR —EARHE
SRR 7 AE R AR RE 3R o SEER IR BJ LAFH AR
SFEEERSIE MRGERMEMEBIE
MERPEFEGRSVBREECHAERER
B BRRFIEHNEERE AR HE
SRR AT AR IFE AR



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

KEMERIERERAR
Annual Report 2022 —Z& — " FFHR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ERVR R GRS
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine the matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 4 &8 &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE
2022 2021
—E-C TET—F
NOTES HKS’'000 HK$'000
k=3 FAET FAET
(Restated)
(&8 5)
Revenue Wz 5 1,665,515 1,416,409
Cost of sales and services $HE B R 75 B 4 (1,157,027) (1,093,758)
Gross profit EZYil 508,488 322,651
Other income H A 5 13,630 63,350
Impairment losses under expected credit FEEEEFEER T2
loss model, net of reversal B E 18 0 kR #EEE 5 (5,954) 4,337
Other gains and losses HHH & E1E 5 7,979 1,966
Impairment of property, plant and ME - -mEREEUK
equipment and other intangible assets ~ EthE A2 & E W (E 13/17 (101,142) (11,956)
Selling and distribution expenses HERZHER (41,361) (59,022)
Administrative expenses THEEER (293,665) (298,862)
Research and development costs i 25 BY 4 (38,244) (28,564)
Share of results of an associate TMEBENE EE (8,390) (4,130)
Finance costs TR 7 (14,076) (14,560)
Profit (loss) before tax MR EEF (8518) 27,265 (24,790)
Income tax credit (expense) FrisiRik® BEx) 8 23,567 (31,182)
Profit (loss) for the year REFF (E518) 9 50,832 (55,972)
Earnings (loss) per share attributable ZRTFFEEELESIE
to owners of the Company BF (F518)
Basic =N 12 HKO0.55 cents (HKO0.60 cents)

0.553&11

(0.607 L)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mAkEHMEERmR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Eizi_giii—f—:)ﬂ =+—BHLEEFE

2022 2021
—E-C B
NOTE HKS’'000 HK$°000
k23 FET FAET
Profit (loss) for the year TEHHN (F518) 50,832 (55,972)
Other comprehensive (expense) Hihzm (Fd) K=
income
ltems that may be reclassified Efﬁ?ﬁ REEEMOEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmzIEE
Exchange differences arising on MBBINEBELZ
translation of foreign operations BE 2 =28 (31,087) (12,542)
Reclassification of cumulative HE—FBa=2/a’Bl
translation reserve upon disposal R MERHEBEENDE
of a joint venture 7,596 -
(23,491) (12,542)
Item that will not be reclassified BAEEHMDEERERY
to profit or loss: Be:
Actuarial gains on defined benefit ERERA BB ENE
plans, net of tax (0K IER) 36 7,089 6,835
Other comprehensive expense TEHMEESZH
for the year, net of tax (30RIRIER) (16,402) (5,707)
Total comprehensive income EREmKE (ZH) 423
(expense) for the year 34,430 (61,679)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2022 R -_E - _&F+_F=+—H

4o A

MBRRR

2022 2021
—E-C 5
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
b= FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz -BER&E 13 602,498 458,727
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 14 264,010 289,033
Investment property B d—Lv/ES 15 - 123,800
Goodwill [k 16 13,439 14,163
Other intangible assets HthmE&EE 17 1,387,327 1,564,078
Interest in an associate RN o 18 14,409 20,371
Interest in a joint venture REERBZEGE 19 - =
Financial assets at fair value through 2 AF{EF AR Z B
profit or loss BE 20 1,950 1,938
Equity investment designated at fair B AFEFAEMEEU
value through other comprehensive w2 RAKE
income 21 390 389
Deferred tax assets RILIRIEE = 35 6,615 =
Total non-current assets EREEERE 2,290,638 2,472,499
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =8 22 522,183 492,972
Loan to an associate m#EATIRENER 18 6,937 7,121
Loan to a joint venture mEEREEENER 19 = 7
Trade receivables FEUL B 5 IR TR 23 96,739 117,435
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMRIE 12 R HE MBI
receivables BRFX 24 31,001 24,282
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUL[E Z M B A ST IE 25 27,598 25,823
Bank deposits IRITHER 26 245,849 =
Cash and cash equivalents e RIBEEEEBY 26 578,903 623,119
Total current assets MENEEMRE 1,509,210 1,290,759
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At 31 December 2022 R-_E__F+_F=+—H

2022 2021
—E- —_EFE__—
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
K&t FET FAET
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade payables ENEZRT 27 138,233 133,422
Other payables and accruals HutE R B & B 28 131,851 99,980
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary NIEEN IV EYNCI B 29 5,580 =
Amounts due to intermediate holding FE{F 5 BIIZ G A T 7k I8
companies 29 25,739 27,495
Tax payable P& R IE 46,200 40,003
Contract liabilities BHEE 30 16,941 8,139
Provisions BiE 31 50,841 75,291
Lease liabilities HEas 32 7,398 6,533
Total current liabilities B ERE 422,783 390,863
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,086,427 899,896
3,377,065 3,372,395
EQUITY i
Share capital [N 33 930,337 930,337
Reserves HE 1,888,554 1,854,124
Total equity HmiEE 2,818,891 2,784,461
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREAR
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 35 175,891 211,518
Contract liabilities SHEE 30 36,127 29,253
Provisions B 31 55,825 32,394
Lease liabilities HEas 32 286,701 304,485
Defined benefit plan obligations ERERAFEIEE 36 3,630 10,284
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 558,174 587,934
3,377,065 3,372,395
The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 257 were H N EIEHEF257BE 2GS BREEH

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Huang Yongfeng
HEIE
DIRECTOR

EFE

Yu Xiaodong
FBER
DIRECTOR
EE

EEgN T _=ZF=-B=+—H#LAEERE
BT THAUATATRARE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY {2 &z B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

Share
Share premium
capital account

R R RER

HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZIEZ—-F—HF—H 930,337 1,857,729
Loss for the year KEFHE = S
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year: ZAEEMEE (ZH) G
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBIEBELT VERER
foreign operations = S
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, net of tax € ZB/EF) T BB E I
(0kiRER) - _
Total comprehensive expense for the year KEZHESTHAE - -
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—#+"A=+—H 930,337 1,857,729
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_F#—HF—H 930,337 1,857,729
Profit for the year KEHF - -
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year: AEEMPE (ZH) W
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBIEBELEVERER
foreign operations = =
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve HE—BEERABRH RS
upon disposal of a joint venture MEREERDE = =
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, net of tax €@t EIBEE I E
(npiRER) = =

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year A&EZ2E () Wz 42

8
At 31 December 2022 A _E__F+-A=1+—H 930,337 1,857,729
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 4&Z & mE B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

Fair value

reserve of

equity

investments

designated

at fair value

Asset through other
revaluation comprehensive Reserve Translation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity

BATEFA

Hi2EKWTEZ

BEEEZ
BEEMLREE NRTEEHE HES bE R Baf e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FHET FET

(note 34)
(Hfit34)

130,615 (224,452) 183 (3,376) 155,104 2,846,140
- - - - (55,972) (55,972)
- - - (12,542) - (12,542)
- - - - 6,835 6,835
- - - (12,542) (49,137) (61,679)
130,615 (224,452) 183 (15,918) 105,967 2,784,461
130,615 (224,452) 183 (15,918) 105,967 2,784,461
= = = = 50,832 50,832
= = = (31,087) = (31,087)
= = = 7,596 = 7,596
= = = = 7,089 7,089
= = = (23,491) 57,921 34,430

130,615 (224,452) 183 (39,409) 163,888 2,818,891
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48 IRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

2022 2021
ZEZCF ZE—F
HKS'000 HK$°000
TET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEHZIRERE
Profit (loss) before tax BRIENER (5518) 27,265 (24,790)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs MY 14,076 14,560
Share of results of an associate DMEBENB 2 ER 8,390 4,130
Bank interest income RTFEUWA (9,137) (3,586)
Bank borrowings forgiven under Paycheck REFHERE 2
Protection Program ("PPP") (FREREET2))
HRZIBIEE ~ (57,559)
Interest income on loan to BEERERENERZ
an associate FIEWA (391) (448)
Interest income on loan to A5EAERMENERZ
a joint venture FIEWA - (285)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BREMRHEZ
plant and equipment B 315 7,866
Write-down of inventories FERME 11,557 8,197
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ~ #J% « BEFIRE UK
and other intangible assets HinEFEERE 101,142 11,956
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BENREZ
equipment e 32,992 46,015
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHESBEZINE 14,194 15,834
Amortisation of other intangible assets HtEBEFEE 2B 83,807 87,094
Impairment losses under expected credit loss  FEUT & 5 Bk ZU TEHA
model on trade receivables, net of reversal EEBEERETZ
RIERS R NERE 1,347 426
Impairment losses under expected credit loss — ELf1FE U &R 2R TEHA
model on other receivables, net of reversal EEBEERETZ
RIERS R NERE 4,600 (2,931)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss A& EATRENEZRN
model on loan to a joint venture, net of RHEERBERETZ
reversal HEBE NRERD 7 (1,832)
Fair value (gain) loss on an investment REMEZ ATE
property (78 B8 (700) 4,400
Gain on deemed disposal of BAALEMERBZHE
an associate (3,852) (11,790)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HESE AR ZFE (6,515) =
Fair value gain on other financial liabilities HittmBaBRz A FEHNH - (12,525)
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEHMELEEZBR 326 S
Gain on early termination of lease RAKLLEHEEZFHE (10) =
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HKS'000 HK$000
FAET FET
Operating cash flows before movements in NiFEEESEHAN
working capital RERERE 279,413 84,732
Increase in inventories FEEM (67,724) (59,905)
Decrease in trade receivables e & 5 8RR 14,394 4,826
Increase in amounts due from fellow FE U [5) % MY 8 2 B R IB G AT
subsidiaries (1,614) (10,035)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits ~ FEAT A 9 E R EMFELL
and other receivables BRFGE ) A (10,337) 23,769
Increase in trade payables e B ZERFRIEM 12,264 25,284
Increase (decrease) in other payables and HitERRD R EER
accruals 2 Geb) 53,250 (16,839)
Increase (decrease) in provisions BEEm L) 1,897 (30,251)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities AHaEEm Gl 18,394 (9,491)
Increase in defined benefit plan obligations TERREAE A EEEM 343 346
Cash generated from operations EEEL VRS 300,280 12,436
Interest paid BHFE (14,001) (14,268)
Tax paid BRE (8,535) (11,924)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ReFHEL (BR) 2
ACTIVITIES RBE38 277,744 (13,756)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZ#HzHE&RE
Placement of bank deposits with original ERERHABB=EAKN
maturity over three months RITHEN (495,606) =
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEAME -BENREER
equipment (53,630) (43,375)
Additions of other intangible assets AMEMEFEE (24,580) (25,245)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original EREHAABBE=EAN
maturity over three months RITEMN 249,757 =
Bank interest received BUWIRTTH B 5,651 3,586
Proceeds on disposal of items of property, HENE BENREEE
plant and equipment PS8 317 2,827
Receipt of repayment of a loan to a joint WEREEABREN
venture BRMZEB™R = 3,176
Receipt of repayment of a loan to an associate U 2 A B & /A Bl 1R HEHY
EmziEmM = 2,935
Interest received on loan to an associate W B F B E A B IR R
BRZzAE - 1,908
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHERZRTPE (318,091) (54,188)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48 IRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

2022 2021
—E-C —E_—F
NOTE HKS'000 HK$000
=3 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiEZEIZHERE 41
Principal portion of lease payments AEMRZAE IR (6,189) (7,217)
Repayment to an intermediate holding AR EERABER
company (522) -
Advance from a fellow subsidiary EEY 1= PNCIE: 5,580 =
Advance from an intermediate holding R ABBRR
company = 1,039
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIBTEM = (195,343)
Repayment of other financial liabilities BRAMMBERE = (35,372)
Interest paid BRHE - (159)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB EEFRAZIREFH (1,131) (237,052)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERREEERVFE
EQUIVALENTS (41,478) (304,996)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HBZRERREEE
AT 1 JANUARY 623,119 914,072
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ EXEHF L3 (2,738) 14,043
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+ZR=+—BzZHER
AT 31 DECEMBER HE&EEE 578,903 623,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
(the “Company”) is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors of the
Company regard Aviation Industry Corporation of China,
Ltd. (incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC")) as its ultimate parent. The registered office of
the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda. The head
office and principal place of business is located at Unit B,
15th Floor, United Centre, 95 Queensway, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) were mainly involved in the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business.

—AgE X

Continental Aerospace Technologies
Holding Limited KPEMZERIZIERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & BA 78R RMisE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE-_“HF+_H=+—HIEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE - FE+-_H=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts’
October 2020 and February

2022 Amendments to

HKFRS 17)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Assets between an

Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

2.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
the relevant assets and liabilities separately. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant assets
and liabilities are not recognised due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual
reporting period beginning on 1 January 2023. As at
31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to
the amendments amounted to HK$256,167,000 and
HK$294,099,000 respectively. The Group is still in
process of assessing the full impact of the application of
the amendments.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements,
a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain property and financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

For financial instruments and investment property
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 32 EAEFHEK

Basis of consolidation HEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate FEMBRExBERARTRAE

the financial statements of the Company and NEIEFIzERULERB R

entities controlled by the Company and its BN BHRER - N TIERT

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the B RARBE B IZEHIHE .

Company:

. has power over the investee; . AHEREARTHER

7

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable . A2HEFKE R EE
returns from its involvement with the MAZ &0 R &R
investee; and REREBTEDR; &

. has the ability to use its power to affect its . BENERENEZED
returns. o

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls MEERBRRIE EXRS =

an investee if facts and circumstances indicate EEG#RXEP—BERZLIE

that there are changes to one or more of the AR AXAEEREEGHESTMA

three elements of control listed above. ZEHIWEERE]

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the WMEABSZ&a ARNRAER

Group obtains control over the subsidiary and NEEHNEBEARZEF#iE

ceases when the Group loses control of the R MR AEBKLXEBRENEB

subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of NE)Z PRI RE&IE BAfgm

a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the EORFERMMBESEENER

year are included in the consolidated statement BlzWARMAZTBAERER

of profit or loss from the date the Group gains BEf#EzHESAGEER

control until the date when the Group ceases to R BEAEETHESARMW

control the subsidiary. BrElzHBLE-

When necessary, adjustments are made to the RN ER LB AR 2 B R

financial statements of subsidiaries to bring RETHABUBREZETE

their accounting policies in line with the Group's REAREF G HE Ko

accounting policies.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’'s cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of
the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and
the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate and a joint venture are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate
or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or
a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Changes in the Group’s interests in an associate
and a joint venture

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a) Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

Revenue from the sale of aircraft engines
and spare parts is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the aircraft engines and spare
parts.

(b) Provision of repair and maintenance
services for aircraft engines

Revenue from the provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines is
recognised over time in the period in which
the services are rendered.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of motor
vehicles, machinery and equipment and office
premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Leases (continued) fHE (#®)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEBAAN @)
Right-of-use assets (continued) FREEE @)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is HWAEETSEEENERG
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the RNESHEREREECHES
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease o REREEERBRB B
term are depreciated from commencement date EECBAFRERAIEFTIR
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of- ME- TR FRHEEELER
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis EEERGE A EREREN
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and HrBzBREESHRITE -

the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a KEEBRGEHBNRRIETAE
separate line item on the consolidated statement FTREEEZIAERIER-

of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits AROEERE

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted EXMNAREEEZEEHIR
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair BEBUVBREERNFIRAR
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial W2 A FENIRET 2 o NI 1aHE
recognition are considered as additional lease REZ A FERERIERIE
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use ENMFC AL ATRAEEEZR

assets. Ko
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3. RAOMBRRZGREBEREKX
BEtHER (B

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) when the lease term has
changed, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. When a
fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised
in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’'s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing cost

All borrowing costs not eligible for capitalisation
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Shares/share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others who provide similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Shares/share options granted to employees

(continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Shares/share options granted to employees

(continued)

When new ordinary shares are issued pursuant to
the award scheme, the fair value of the ordinary
shares granted that vest immediately or without
lock-up period is recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date with corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). When the ordinary
share awards are granted with lock-up period,
which has same meaning as vesting period, the
fair value of such amounts granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
lock-up period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

For defined benefit pension plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. In determining the
present value of the Group’s defined benefit
obligations and the related current service cost
and, where applicable, past service cost, the
Group attributes benefit to periods of service
under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if
an employee’s service in later years will lead to
a materially higher level of benefit than earlier
years, the Group attributes the benefit on a
straight-line basis from:

(a) the date when service by the employee
first leads to benefits under the plan
(whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the
employee will lead to no material amount
of further benefits under the plan, other
than from further salary increases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit cost (continued)

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains
and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained profits and will
not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment or curtailment
and a gain or loss on settlement is recognised
when settlement occurs. When determining past
service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an
entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit
liability or asset using the current fair value of
plan assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without
considering the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the
present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit cost (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. However, if
the Group remeasures the net defined benefit
liability or asset before plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, the Group determines
net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure such
net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost,
past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements);

° net interest expense or income; and

L4 remeasurement.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit cost (continued)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Group's defined benefit pension plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of
these contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that
there will be contributions from employees or
third parties, the accounting depends on whether
the contributions are linked to service, as follows:

o If the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions
are required to reduce a deficit arising
from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability or asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZoMBHRRZEREEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EKXEIHHE #E

Employee benefits (continued) 1lES#E7 (&

Retirement benefit cost (continued) BRIAEFIRE (@)

. If contributions are linked to services, . e A AR 75 A R > B
they reduce service costs. For the amount A PR AR AR TS A A o LR
of contribution that is dependent on the R¥ FRRMBERNERE
number of years of service, the Group BEME AEBERES
reduces service cost by attributing the BEEERFI1IRES
contributions to periods of service using #8 F/ BB 70 R E B H R
the attribution method required by HKAS 75 IR AR 1B A A R
19 Employee Benefits paragraph 70 for & 7% AR 75 HA [ 44 TRk L
the gross benefits. For the amount of AR 75 8 7 o fie i Rk = 2R A
contribution that is independent of the RFFHAmES > AIAREE
number of years of service, the Group RiR 5 B AR 75 23 R
reduces service cost in the period in which D AR TS YA o

the related service is rendered.

Short-term employee benefits ZHAE S 1EF

Short-term employee benefits are recognised RHEERTNZRANEER
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits HRFBEPZMNRAM B RITIR
expected to be paid as and when employees SRR BN HEE R E
rendered the services. All short-term employee ReEZ S —EBEBMHER
benefits are recognised as an expense unless SRR EHATHEFAE
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion ERAWIF A BRI 0

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to NEFERBEEZ NN EER BE
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual BESEN MIEKRFTEUAR

leave) after deducting any amount already paid. FR) EREE
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit (loss) before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
and interest in a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interest are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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